———

CH

A 1 R P O R T

Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority Meeting
Tuesday, March 12, 2019, at 8:30 a.m.
At the City of Charlottesville’s Basement Conference Room

AGENDA
Call to Order:

Consent Agenda:
1. Minutes — December 12, 2018 meeting
2. Financial Statements — January 31, 2019 (Unaudited)
3. Airport Statistics: November 2018, December 2018 and January 2019

Matters from the Public: All person desiring to make presentations as part of the MATTERS FROM THE
PUBLIC section of the Agenda are requested to advise the administrative office prior to commencement of
the meeting to assist the Chairman in conducting the meeting in an efficient and productive manner;
allowing for maximum input. Speakers are encouraged to limit remarks to five minutes. Additional time
may be granted solely at the discretion of the Chairman unless such presentation is extended by reason of
the Authority’s request for additional information:

Awards and Recognition: Dr. John Post was presented with an award for his service on the Airport Joint
Commission (2012-2018)

Action Items:

Annual Election of Chairman, Vice-Chairman, and Secretary/Treasurer

FY-2018 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

2019 Audit Committee Membership

Revision of Authority’s Purchasing Regulations

Design-Build Construction Method for Parking Deck Project

Resolution Making Certain Declarations and Providing Certain Approvals in Connection with a
Proposed Bond Issue

7. Ratification of Transportation Network Company Agreement Fees

SR W=

Informational Items:
1. Executive Director’s Update
a. Personnel Update
b. FY2020 -6 Year Airport Capital Improvement Plan
c¢. Construction Update
i. Parking Improvements Design
ii. Runway/Taxiway Rehab Construction
iii. Air Carrier Ramp Expansion Design
iv. Entry Pavilion Design
v. Terminal Energy Modification
vi. Terminal Area Master Plan
vii. MALSR Update
viii. Charging Stations Installation
d. Marketing & Air Service Update

Next Scheduled Meeting: Closed Session for Executive Director Annual Review — Date/Time/Location:
TBD.

Adjourn:



CHO

Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Board Meeting Minutes
Wednesday, December 12, 2018 at 9:00 a.m. in the Airport Terminal-Lower Level Conference Room

MINUTES

Members Present: Donald Long, Jeff Richardson

Members Absent: Mike Murphy

Staff Present: Melinda Crawford: Executive Director; Penny Shifflett: Director of Finance and
Administration; Jason Burch: Deputy Executive Director; Jason Devillier: Director of Maintenance &
Construction; Jessica Conley: Administrative Assistant; Ronnie Shifflett: Airfield & Facilities Manager
Others Present: Lisa Robertson, City of Charlottesville Attorney, Alan McDonald, J orge Gonzalez

Call to Order at 9:10 a.m. by Donald Long

Consent Agenda:
1. Minutes — September 27, 2018: Mr. Long motioned to approve the Minutes, Mr. Richardson
seconded the motion, and it was unanimously approved.
2. Financial Statements —October 31, 2018 (Unaudited) discussed.
3. Airport Statistics: August 2018, September 2018, and October 2018 discussed.

Mr. Richardson made a motion to accept the Consent Agenda, the motion was seconded by Mr. Long, and it
was unanimously approved.

Matters from the Public: None

Employee Recognition: Ronnie Shifflett-35 years of service, Stirling Williams-15 years of service, and
Kevin Whitmer-5 years of service.

Public Hearing: Ms. Crawford briefly explained the proposed revisions to the Authority’s Rules
and Regulations Regarding Conduct and Activities on the Property of the Charlottesville Albemarle
Airport Authority and the public hearing requirement. Mr. Long opened the public hearing. No one
spoke concerning the proposed revisions, and Mr. Long closed the public hearing.

Action Items:

1. Revision of Rules and Regulations Regarding Conduct and Activities on the Property of the
Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority. The background and purpose of this revision was
discussed. Mrs. Robertson, the Authority’s Legal Counsel, recommended that the Board adopt
Ordinance 2018-1 that sets forth changes to the Airports Rules and Regulations as advertised in a
public hearing notice. Mr. Long moved to adopt Ordinance 2018-1 as noted by Mrs. Robertson and
to approve the Revision of Rules and Regulations Regarding Conduct and Activities on the Property
of the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority. Mr. Richardson seconded and it was
unanimously approved.

2. Amendment#1 to the FY19 Operating Budget. The background for this item was discussed. Mr.
Richardson moved to approve Amendent#1 to the FY19 Operating Budget as presented. Mr. Long
seconded and it was unanimously approved.

3. Take-Home Vehicle Policy. The background and proposed policy for this item discussed. Mr. Long
moved to approve the Take-Home Vehicle Policy. Mr. Richardson seconded and it was unanimously
approved.

4. Increasing the Dollar Limit for a Single Item Quote for Professional Services. The need for this
change to the Authority’s procurement manual was discussed. Mr. Long. moved to approve
Increasing the Dollar Limit for a Single Item Quote for Professional Services. Mr. Richardson
seconded and it was unanimously approved.



Informational Ttems:
1. Executive Director’s Update: Ms. Crawford presented the following items:

a. Personnel Update: Introduction of new police chief, Jonathan Shenk. Several other
personnel-related items were noted.

b. MALSR Update: The authority has executed the reimbursable agreement with FAA. Delta
Airport Consultants has surveyed the MALSR, and has provided a report containing repair
recommendations to the FAA. We are waiting on the FAA’s response to this report.

¢. Request for the Authority to consider support of the expansion of City Water/Sewer to
property near the west side of the airfield along Earlysville Road: Item discussed.

d. Construction Update:

i. Masterplan Update: The Request for Proposals for professional services to perform
the update was discussed.

ii. Parking Improvements: The design phase of the parking expansion project is
continuing,

iii. Runway/Taxiway Rehab: The project has not closed out yet, waiting on contractor to
finish a few items.

iv. Air Carrier Ramp Expansion Design: This design project is currently underway.

v. Entry Pavilion Design: Drawings have been provided and this project will be
presented before the Albemarle County Architectural Review Board in January.

vi. Terminal Energy Modification: Ms. Crawford discussed the upcoming energy
modification project that will place film on all windows throughout the concourse
that will help with energy conservation as well as safety.

vii. Charging Stations Installation: Installation of charging stations at the Gate 5 area is
complete, and we have ordered the charging stations for Gates 1-4 with completion
scheduled before yearend.

e. Marketing & Air Service Update:
i. Mr. Burch discussed the recent success of the Thanksgiving holiday travel period,
and noted it was the busiest passenger travel activity in CHO’s history with 381
flights taking place during the week of Thanksgiving. He also mentioned that Delta
Airlines had upgraded their fleet during the Thanksgiving period to add an Airbus
319, but they will be returning to the regular scheduled Boeing 717 aircraft soon.
f.  Proposed 2019 Meeting Schedule: A proposed meeting schedule for CY2019 was presented
and discussed. Ms. Conley will be sending the schedule out to all board members for input.

Closed Session:

In accordance with VA Code 2.2-3712 the Airport Authority convened in closed session for discussion and
consideration of the performance and salary of the Executive Director, pursuant to VA Code 2.2-3711 (A) (1).
Mr. Long made the motion, Mr. Richardson seconded the motion, and it was unanimously approved. The
Board entered closed session at 10:28 a.m.

Certification of Closed Meeting:

At 11:09 a.m. Mr. Long made the following motion:

I move that this Board certify by a recorded vote that to the best of each Board member’s knowledge only
public business matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements of the Virginia Freedom of
Information Act and identified in the Motion convening the closed session were heard, discussed or
considered in the closed session. Mr. Richardson seconded the motion, and the motion was unanimously
approved

Mr. Long motioned to accept the Executive Director’s contract as presented. Mr. Richardson seconded the
motion, and it was unanimously approved.

Next Scheduled Meeting: To be Determined.

Adjournment: 11:12 a.m.



Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
Financial Statements (unaudited)
As of January 31, 2019



Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
Profit & Loss Notes
As of January 31, 2019

$15K and 10% change

Revenues:

A. Advertising:--This is the airport’s first full year with advertising revenue. The actual
revenues have come in higher than projected. Staff is doing a great job with the program.

Expenses:
B. Various Expense Line Items:--There are a few line items under budget. These expenses

vary and it is not unusual for them to happen later in the year or at the end of the budget
cycle.

C. Various Payroll and Benefit Expense Line Items:--There were vacant positions for our
public safety department, but with the hiring of Chief Shenk in October, the positions
have been getting filled. Since November, the Authority has hired 5 full-time officers
and 1 part-time officer. The department is one away from being fully staffed and the last
individual is expected to be on board in April. The practice when calculating the budget
for benefits for open positions is to plan for the employee to select the most expense
health care option. This is why it often looks like we have underspent in the Health
Insurance line item.

D. Airfield Grounds Maintenance: -- year-to-date expense: $34,535 Budgeted: $10,353
This account is over budget due to an unexpected fence repair project.

E. Parking Pavement/Booths/Steps:-- year-to-date expense: $26,351 Budgeted: $11,263
This account is over budget due to the demolition of an old structure on airport property.

F. Terminal OT:-- year-to-date expense: $76,239 Budgeted: $38,000
This line item is mainly due to our public safety officers having to work overtime due to
being so short staffed at the beginning of the year as well as our new shop & fleet
supervisor and new custodians working overtime to get up to speed.

G. Terminal-Util-Water:-- year-to-date expense: $33,361 Budgeted: $17,500



There was a rate increase that took effect July 1, 2018. There will be a budget
amendment made when we true up the numbers at year-end.

H. Terminal Maintenance:-- year-to-date expense: $113,824 Budgeted: $62,713
There were some terminal modifications to improve airline efficiency. Delta was moved
from gate 2 to gate 4 due to aircraft relocation. A water line had to be installed for TSA.

. Terminal Janitorial Supplies and Janitorial Contract: These two line items are related.
Originally, we did not plan on using contracted services for janitorial services, but we did
not hire our own staff until August and therefore paid a third party for the month of July.
As for the Janitorial supplies being over budget, there were some larger pieces of
equipment that needed to be purchased at the onset of having our own employees perform
some of the janitorial duties.

J. Terminal Flevator Escalator and HVAC Maintenance: These two line items account for
the maintenance that is needed for our aging systems. The expenses for these are
exceeding our budgets at this time.

K. Terminal Business Center/Lounge: This line item is under spent due to limited traffic at
this time. There is also the corresponding revenue for this area which is also under

budget at this time.

Net Income

January year-to-date net income before other income = 415,587.



930 | afed

00°8V6'€08°8 59'988'185‘Y 6'ES6'819'Y L9'BEI'EEY 99°£L2°Tr9 awoou [el0y
00'999'STL'T 00°Zr9'TSTT 86'£98VTT'T 00°'502'S9T 85146791 SANNIAFY TYNINHAL (301
A %trL8- 00'¥EY L~ 00°000'9%T 00°69T'S8 00'SEL0T 00°£81°CT 00°S5t'T a3uno7/1ajua) ssauisng
%00 000 000 000 l000 000 lo00 3NU3A3Y I13PIO NI0M "JulRy
%00 000 00°000'58¢ 000 l000 000 000 8J1AI35 1GR( 105 qUIIBY U 33e1S
%00 000 00°000°00€ 000 l000 000 000 3JUBUIUIRIA) [EUIWID L IO JuF AjelS
(%00 000 00°9/1'2 100'T9EY |00 T8y l00°€z9 00°€Z9 0SS0 WLV
1%0°00T 09°LLE 00°000° 000 log'seg l00'0 000 leunuia) snosueRISIN
%E'LT 15706601 00°00680T 00'Se5'€9 TSSTSL |00°520'6 0t°'€90°6 SUOISSadUOT YID/Ppoad
v %0cE 05'9€8'8T 100°000°05T 10000528 05°9€€'9TT l0000s'z1 00'85L'6T Suisiuenpy
%271 |00°095- oo 218'2S loo9zs'es 00°99T'€E 100818 00'849'% 2sed] pue] v1D Je) jejuay
‘%00 000 |00°000°77 00°000'7T 00°000'%T 00°000T 00°000Z 5924 Uof1eodsuel) punoig
%T'0 9£'659 100°009'8€0°T 00°0SE'8TS 9L'600'6TS 00°0S0°vL 86'TEY YL anuaazy 1eJ |eyuly
%C'TT 0L'TLST l00's61'9E 00°CTT'IT 0£°789'€C 00'910°¢ S£°900'% uaWRsINGUIBY YSL
%291 v'zeL'e loozzs'ty 00'85£'2T ¥'085°92 00°E6L'E TE'TBL'E 1U3Y/334 21035 Yy
%00 €5°6~ 00°956'L1S 00'THT'20E LY TET'T08 00°€9T'er €9°T9T'er juay auny
. | | SINNIATY YNIAYIL
00'PES'BSS Y 00'0ETSST 167°00t°295 00'975‘TvE 100'T8€E'pSE SINNIAIY ONINYV [er0L
%1Ce- 00522~ 00°00Z'T 00°00L 00°5LY 00°00T 00°00Z 5324 SNoAue(|AIs|N
%6'ST 9918 00°00t's 00°05T'E 9£'996'¢ 00°0SY 00008 Suppieq aseg mai)
%90 £5°P05'ST |00vE6'TSS Y 1007t LYST |£5°856'295°C 00'9L6'0bE 00°'T89'sSE Yy Suppieg 123 d
| [ | SINNIATY ONIIEYY
100'8v6'£SP'T 10025158 L1'685°€06 |00 TVe'8TT 80°€TT'TTT SINNIATY Q1IIIYIV [e101.
%T¥T 00°Z58'T 00°00T‘€T 00°00L°Z 00°Z55'6 00°00T°T 00'TSET ‘qupsy [011U0) $5330Y Ajundag
%0°00T- 00°00£- l00"002'T 00'00Z 000 007001 000 PIBLHIY 2nu3A3Yy SNo3uejiaos|in
%00 ‘000 000 000 000 000 PIRYIy-2dueuajuiepy "3u3 aleis
%6'8€ 65246 00°000°s 00°005°C 65'TLY'E 000 000 a3emold m/v
%L T0'608'8T 00'ZeEs'SHY 00°£Z1°09C 110'986'8LT 00°19t'2E |98°079'98 anuanay 084
%8'0 20297 00°9€5'06 00°£26'65 120'68€'09 00°0Z1°9 l68z€T' 5334 Pj3YIY/1usy punaig|
|%0"pT- YL 29 T- 0009267 |00'699°TT 192°980'0T 00°£99'T 000 s1apey)
[%b'9 65°25€'CE 00°0Z£'TL8 |00'T58'805 6S°€0T'TYS |00'€69°2L €E°80T'LL Snuaasy Suipuel aujuy
| | _ [ SINNIATY Q131H8IY
l00"008°TL §9°99%'9Z 0T°960°€Z |23990'8 00'TTL'T SINNIATH JAILVHLSININGY |e30]
%0°00T- 00°000°S- 00°000'5€ 00°000'S 000 00°000°s 000 wei04d ULOWIOId 'g UOREIAY YOUA
% - |S9°'5v8- l00 00z '€ 59'99€'61 00'TZS‘8T £9'99L°C 00°555°C WBWISINGUISY eIS V1D
%6°LTT 07°'SLY'T 00°009°€ 00°00T'C 0T'SLSY 00°00€ 00°ZST BWODU} SNOUE[IIS|IA
| | [ SINNIATY IALLVISININGY|
3woduy|
asuadx3/awoou) Ateutpig
% 310 A1A $1a a1 dpng | 3pna ala 67 uer- 81, [nf 193png 61 uer
6102 Aenuep

aoueWLIONd }9Bpng ss07 B JoId

Hodiy apewaqyy ofj1Asa)jopeyd

siseq [enioay
8HL0/E0
Wd £0°§




930 Z abeg

Hoduay aieWaq)Y a|jiAsa)jopeyD

00°S8V°£TE'T |00'€8¢'¥8T'T '60°797'956 |00'989°0LT 09'TH0'0ET sasuadx3 aAleNS|UWPY [el0]
%Y €6~ 00°08vvL- 00°089'TLT 00'0EL'6L 00°0S2'S 00°06€°TT 00°6L8 asuadx3 uawadojaaaq adnas 1y
1%L p8- 00°0STCT- 00'009'vC |00°05€¥T 000022 00'050'C 000 SjusAg [eads
%E T 88'STS'6TT- |00'057's8Y |00°s8¢°687 T1'658'69T 100°500°5E 2201507 asuadx3 uogowold g JuisiAApY
%t~ 66'806'TL- 100°005'T6T 100°90£'TTT 10°L6L'6E 00'856'ST 00'6Z0°9 $394 {euo|ssajoid
%00 000 00052 000 000 000 000 ujwpy - asuady3 193g peg
%0°00T Y1092 ) 000 ¥1°092 | 000 sasuadx3 snosuejjaasIA
%0°8E- 70'9€5°0T- 00'08¥'Lt 0066947 86'79T°LT 00256 98'458'L sasuadx3 301nosay uewny
%0001 vLeTTT 000 000 vLETTT v8'81Z $933 21D
%STZS 09'v95'T '00'009 00008 09'798'T 000 00947 5024 Supjueg
%L~ |59'9€8- 0070047 00'5ZT'T SE'88T 000 907z age1s0d
%9°LTT 8TELT'T 00°00T'E 00'908'T 187676 00'857 87148 asuadx3 Supeaty
%9°LT- l€5°9pz- 00°00¥°Z 00°00V'T LY'EST'T 00002 lzzoy Suddiys |
%6y looTet 00'080°9 00'6TE'E l0008v's 00°0%9 l00'570'T Suparpely sqng 1§ sang|
%T0F 00'810°7 00'679'8 00'920°S |00 pro's 00°8TL |o0"0eT aAnelIsjupIpY -'sqng g sang|
%0vL- 78'988°TT- 00'000°€Z 00°000'9T 18T'E9T'Y 00°000'T 000 Supaspey--janes]
%T'ST TLEVT'T 00°000°€T |00185°2 [IR7IX] 00'€80°T 000 SARENSIUIWPY - |9ARIL
9691~ S'805- 00'ZET'S l00'zs0'e SSEPS'T 00°9g 000 ases] Juawdinby
|%0-9¢- 10°8Z0°T€- 00°£E5'6YT loozzzss 66861'SS 00'T9¥'ZT 8T'ZvE's asuadx3 saandwoy
%175 000642 00°08T'6 00'55€'S 00'595°2 100592 000 uopeanpz
Tz \vL6EE 0070097 00°615'T 72°858'T 0041z z8°sLe 5924 Sujssanou Jjosheg
%0've- |szzeT’s- 00897z 00°8V0°ET 75166 1001987 9T'9LT sasuadg 3310
%ETT |97°502'T 00'00%%T 00°00v"8 97'509'6 0000C°T €0'S70'T ssjddng 3330
%0 T- |£9°'05T'2- 00'70€°97 00'bbE'ST |EEE6TET 00'Z61°C leT'e82'C asuadx3 adueinsuy
| %t - 18'v56'9- 00°8y8'9z 00'659'ST l6T'v0L'8 00°££TT 89'655'T suoydajar-mn|
%E'8 9£'818'7 0055265 00'TL6'EE los'68°98 00'€S8'y l9g'gee’s wawamay |
|%0°et LE'SLT 0029 [00'79€ lzgTps 0075 '€210T qes|q wi9)-3u07 /qesiq wadL-loys|
%6zt 8Y'£59 00°9v8'8 100°890°S sr1TLS l00'vzs 75°s€8 soueInsu| 3y
l%16T 0T'LT1'6 100'856'T8 000182 07'££6'95 [00'0£8'9 0’5608 ddng/'su) yyean
%6°G- 09°€06'T- |00°085°LS 00'902°2¢ Op'Z0E'0E 00°ST9'Y 62'0StY saxel, |joshed
%665 85°€20'8 00°00002 00°00'€T 85'€THTZ 100002°S 66'LTH'S BWBAQ-UIWpPY
%6'T- |z9'027'e- 00" L6t°Est O00'EES THY €ETITVEY '00TEL'YS TI'ZS6ES safem
sasuadx3 aaensiupupy
asuadxz|
% 1 Q1A 310 01A 193png [enuuy 193png a1a 6T UBf - 8T, [nf 123png 61 uef _
sLog Aenuer
JUeLIOLID ﬁﬁmv—._m $S07 ¢ Jyoid siseg [enJooy

61/L0/E0
Wd £0:§




9Jo ¢ affeg

00°LP6LSY'T 00°0£2°858 TLTBL'SSL 00" Z6T'THT 85°760°991 sosuadx3 pjayty [e10y
%0°00T- 00°796's- 0070089 00796 000 00995 000 asuadxy punoidyaeg Ayindas
%641~ 95'78€'s- 00'7Lv'08 00'Tv6'9r Y555'8E 009029 00'008's 1043u0) 55333y Ajndag
%0°00T- 000527~ 00°000°€ 00'05£°T 000 00052 000 s|euatel Jewizey
%861 SLOELY 100°00€°9T 00'905'6 5TeL'Y 00°8SE°T SE'6ET'T swieaiyy
%S'TG- | |s9zeTy- 100°0S6'€T 00'PET'S TETrH'E 00Z9T'T Q00 say|ddng Suuier) Jiyvy
%0°0 6T756'S 00°005'5Z 00'SL8'FT 61°678°07 005217 96'80£°ZT wawdinb3 444y
%EEE- 05°§55°5- 00°52T'TT 00'8999T 05ZITIT 00°955's 00'0 $994 33ULUIIUIEIAI ZHN 008
%L SE~ 6T'TIT'S- 00010 100'885T 18'9LE6 00'¥80T £8'EE6 23uel|dwio) |ejuamuoiaug
|%5°€6- L0°201'T- 00°00ST 00'00S‘T €6'L6 00'0 sasiax3 Aousdiawg|
%0°ET- LETTET- 00'878'6 looeges's '€9TIYY 00'618 '89'025 sunoyun |
|%2°gsT 00°0607 100'582'T l000s£'T 00°0v8' 000 000 PI3YaIY 'qns g sang|
|%8'v6- ¥9'€£9'- 00°032°0T l00'sg6's 9g'TIE 00's58 1000 adueujuew [SAR)L
%898~ 87'978's- 100'805'TT 00§12 7'v88 100656 000 uopeanpy
% 9E 9L'cet 00°0PET 00°'59¢T 9£'858°T 00°S6T 8'GLE 5834 Bu|ssasald |loshed
%Z05- 02'959'%T- '00'000°05 00'69T°67 08'ZI5%T 00291’y 000 PlRYIV-2IuRUR U 2)E1S
%9ET | T0'TLsE 0073’8y 00°06t'87 T0°29€°2 000407 (€779 11O pue seg asuadx3 apiyan
%6'89T 'eT's80'S 00°09T's 00010 leT's60'8 0008 LBETT “yaing *dinb3 ‘1urewy
%ETT- T0'98e’L- 00°00T‘€0T 00PFT09 185'£5225 00'765'8 1868581 wawdinb3 pRyv Jujey |
Q |uoeez 78181V 00°05£4T l00'gse‘oT 'z8'vesvE 00°6L1'T 100°06T'T 20UeUBIUIEI SPUNOID PlRKYY |
%L 68~ S0'T85- 00°08£'6T 100'985'TT $6'956'9 00'8v9°T |90'0zv'E Sdueudjueny|
%668 16462 00'8LL'TT 100°S5t'L 16°62¢°0T 00°690'T 000 asueuauiely Supysn
l%g'8e | togssoT 00'018'8y 00°TTELT LOV06'LE |00's59'07 L0'V06°LE |eacwdy mous
%L lTrTes'T 00°008'€ 0005022 718957 00°0ST's 90'€8€"s asuadxg asueinsu
%svy | |og'60T 000ty 00°5¥7 08'75E l00'sE 60T 1Bem-Inn
%IVE- | 8E'969T- 00°00t'8 00°006% 29'€0T'E 00002 £T'SBO'T auoydajaL-1n
%6 86'49V'T 1000009 00005 |86'£96 00°00TT 05'STS'T auedoig-inn|
o612~ S0'68T°T- 00°008'8T |00008'91 '56'019°GT 00007 8U'8TLT 213N |
|%s°82- SIBSEL- 00°689% 7 00 £e8'sT SELLV'BT 00'769'€ /50990 JusWRINAY |
%e'6T- 986 00248 l00'2Ts YTETY 00°EL 16'vS qes|q a1 -3uo/qesig uua) -Moys
%8'67- OvT08'T- 100685, 00'89¢'y 09°990'€ 00729 81625 aaueinsu| 3y
D %60r |0s'£sT'8z- l00'TZE'STT 00°020'69 05°29L0b 00008’ 00£LE°S *ddng/*suj yyeay
%LVl- | |8TT80M- 00'028'1t |00'5E8'27 TLTseET lo0'zze's 69°£L6'E saxel, [joshed|
%T9T | 56'€E6'9 00°000°09 00°000°cy |s6'ce6'sr 00°000°0T STVLEOT awpeng
2 [%6ST- 09'THT'TS- 00'9€9°095 00'vaz'sTE | |ovrzeozie 00'T06'0t |65'680°EY sadem|
sasuadxy playy
% 10 ALA #10 aLA 198png jenuuy 138png a1A 6T uef - T, [ 123png 6T uef _
610z Atenuep

aduewWIoMdd J9Bpng ss0 ¢ Jyoid

Modily eprewaq|y sjjiase)opeyD

siseq |erusoy
BL1LO/EO
Wd g0is




940 ¢ aBeq

aduewlIopad J9bpng sson % Jyouy

Moduty sprewsq|y silAseoleyD

00°SBE'POT'T 00°9VL V67T 19816788 00'668°08T £V'68L°0ET sosuadx3 Suped [e10L
%8'18- Er'YI8Z5E- 00°000°05 £ 00°005'LEY £5'S89'6L 0000529 SE'P69°TE LT0Z uojsuedx3 Supjsed asepng
|%00 e 00'¥1569T 100°£8'50T 77'6£8°S0T 00'kS0T log S0t Supjied 301135 1920 100Z|
%00 08'¢C 00'ZTE €8T 00°Z€6'90T 08'VE6°90T 00°9£2'ST 0v'922'ST Sunped )A18S 1994 $TOZ
%0°00T- 00°6T1- 00707 00'6TT 000 00°LT 00°0 Jupjsed-asuadx3 199 peg
%0°06- 00'€9- 100°0ZT 0002 002 000t 00z uoys 1 19AQ
%9°0 ¥9°TEL 00°000°002 00°005STT 79 TET'ITT 00°005'9T S9v79vT JUnoIs|Q PAe) UPAID
%Y vi- |£6°681°¢- loo000‘0T 00°000°0T £0°095°C 000 Suppied-suuopun|
%L'LS- lozoss'T- 00°09T’S 00°0T0'S logeLzt 00°0EY 000 Juped-asuadxy sapiyaA |
%6'LT 00'LY 00°8¥b l00'€97 loo'ote 00°LE lo0otE *sqng ’g sang
|%6'66- 000z 00°005°€ 00'7r0'z 00°€ 00262 loo'o (CYCIT
|%0°00T- 00298T- 00°561°E 00'798°T 000 00997 lo00 uopeanpy
%"9T 69'88€ 000057 00°0LY'T 69'858'T 00°0TZ ‘65t $934 Bu|S53301d [jorAed
%L'9€ 80°€78'Z looooz'sT 00002 80°€Z5°0T 100007 000 103u03 diyyes) g aSeus]s - upjieq
%T'8E- 68°9v8'T- looovz's 00°0E8°Y TIE86T 100069 000 soyddng
%9'8Y loT'99T2 0006252 00'9SLYT 01°226'TC loos0T'z 000 aaueudiuley ‘dinb3 Suppieq|
|%0'PET I15°'280'ST 00°0TE6T 00°€9Z°TT |15°05€'9z 00'609°T |86'7bT sda1s/sy100g/quauiaaey Sunped
%T Ly YE6pS'8T- 00°05£€0T 10072509 ‘99'7L6'TE 00'9v9's 2209 dusualUIR SPUN0ID Sunjied
|%0°001- 00°000'¢- 100'000°ZT 00°000°Z 000 000007 000 Sunysn 107 Suppreq
%b'T8- 00'§72'E- 00°006°% 00'056°€ 00°SEL l00'5£6'T 00'SSL jeaoway mous
%291 L9°5b8 l00'TE6's 00'80Z°S 198509 |00tvL 18998 asuadx3 aauensu
%L°T 567 |00"00g 00°SLT S6°LLT loo'sz 79T Jarep-nn|
%9°01- T9'6€L- lo0'000'zT 00°000°2 6£09Z°9 |00'000'T 80°7ZS'T auoydaja)-n
%5°c- '85°16- 00°0Fb't 00°065°Z \erser'T 0004 00°00€ SY3n Supped-jn
|%e Tz £'668'7- 00°88€'6€ l00vz6'zT |1S'720'8T 00°z8z's TTTE9'e wawamay|
‘%eTE- 18'162- 00'845°T 00°TZ6 €179 00°0€T 0918 qesiq wia1-3uoi/qesiq wus-yoys
%6'ZT- £5°L9b- 00°p61°9 00'719's LEPYT'E 00°9TS l9g°T8y 2dueansuj ajn
%I TE- 00'€r8'vZ- |00'v£6'98T 00°506'6L 00°290'65 loo'sTr'TT 00°TES9 *ddng/-suj iajeay
%0007 l00'092'T 100°057°7 | 000 Sa0A1es padesiun)-Supjeq
%ET- 98°zsy- loo's6Tve 00'T16'6T ¥1'85H'6T loozes’z 9888 Bupjied-saxey [osAed|
%9°0- ev'zal- 10000005 00'00Z'0¢ |es°210'08 00'000'8 ET'6v0°L Suppied-awpiang|
(%80 66°948'T 00'75L'T68 loozze'szz l6£°861'677 00°528'67 |96v80°TE Suppied-sagem
sasuadxg Sunjaey
% 3310 LA Bla aLa 198png jenuuy 138png 1A 6T uer - 8T, |nf 1adpng 6T uer
6107 Asenuer

s|seg |eniooy
6H20iE0
Wd £0°¢




9 Jo g ebey

foueuLIOuBd Jabpng sS07 ' MjoId
Hoday apewaq)y |jiAsaRopeYyD

00°005'Z- SE'08P'LSS- _mh.mmm.ms _ EE'694°901- LT°9LT'08- awodu| Aleulpig 13N
00'8r'118'8 00'£98'6£T'S 8T°L9€E0T'Y 00°80T°0bL £6'€55'769 asuadxg jero) |
| 00'TZ9'TE6'T |00'896'T0LT 24°T6L609'T 00'9LE'LT |Z€'0£9'597 sasuadh [eujuna) [e3oy
%0291 0%'S00°E 00°SLT'E 00'658'T or098% 00°692 66°TYP'E suonesado - janesy.
%8'85- 00°8rT'T- |00'058°e 00'€S6'T 00°508 100'6£2 000 suoljesadp - uoieanpy
%0°00T- 00'vEY- 00°05£ 00'FEY 00°0 10029 000 asuadxg Suimoy |
%9°55- L9'EL8'TT- 00°009'98 00°0SE‘TT ceorr's 00°050°S '££°975'8 Awjes qng - janel),
%6'FL- oT'00v'z- 00'005'S 00'90T°€ 06'508 00°8st7 000 sajjddns swi3
%888 78'856's- 100'805'TT 00'€TL9 18T'SL 00'656 000 Aiages
%0'0 65T 00'999'96¢ 00°699'2L2 T'999'LLT 00°£99°6€ £€9°999'68 Jeuluia] 3dJAK3S 143a 100z
%0°00T 0£'692 000 000 0£'69C 000 S6°0F $334 pae) pas) aduno
%6'78- \zE060 1L~ 00009641 |oozoz'z8 189°'TLL'ST 00°99%'TT S8'8LET 28uno1/191ua) ssauisng
%T'9T ¥6's16 00'0000T l00'geg's V6'€8L'9 00'vE8 85'VLS SIOPESSROUY/II|AIDS JOISH) |
%68 15009y 00°008'8 00 TET'S ISTEL'S 00'EEL OT'€78'S Axages ayqng - swaopun|
%0°00T- 00'699'71- 00°000°0C |00°699°TT 000 00°£99'T 1000 uraisAs Suided |eujwioy |
%z Ty 00vSL 00550 00°582'% 00'6£5'2 |00's5Z 000 sqns g sanq
%8"L- TS'EETT- l00'80T'2T 00°€T8'ST 65°6L5'FT 100'652°C 87°699'T uored) D Adudgiaug
%0°00T O'rrTor 000 00°0 VER AN 000 000 esuo) [euoyuer
%S°T- 00'TLE- 00°000'sZ 00'T85F1 00°0TZT 00°€80°C 00'0 BdURUAIUEIAL YAYN
%0'68- 00°0Z6've- 000000 0000082 00°080°€ 1000007 00°0bt aaueuatuley spiy
%1°L9 0£'9v0°SE 00'705°68 00'€TT'ZS log'ssT'28 00'65%'L 76'96T2€ 3IUBUIIUIRIN DVAH
%T VL |55'868'02 00°562'3Y 00's/T'8T SSEL0'6Y 00°520' 6°0C'E JduBUBIUILY I0)EjLIST J03eAd|]
%6'€6- looves'e- 00°CST'ST 00'¥85°0T l00059 00°TIST 000 uoneanpy|
%T9E EYR 00°0bET |00'598°T 9£°958'T 00'S61 T@sLE s394 Juissad0ud |osheqd
l%e'8TT TL08Y'ET 00'ZE0VE l00'zs8'sT TLTEE'EY 00°9€8'C lsT285T saljddng |euouep
|%e6z- 0€'S0€'2- 100°005°€T 00'6£8°2 0£'695'S 00'STT'T 1000 20ueuajuiely wyey) a8es3eq
%9°0t- SPTL8Y- 0025507 00'¥86'1T SSZIT'L 00°ZTLT SL'8SL'T adueldwo) vHSO
%0'59- 00°SLp's- 00'005°6 00°'8TH'8 00'€V6'T l00'797'T 00°08T°T Sudesspuer jeujwia)
%t L6~ S8'0T7'ge- 00°000°05 00'691'6T |sT'8SL 00°'£9TY 000 adeudis jeuiuay,
%892~ [versie- 00°00t'C 00°00%'T larpz0'T 00°002 000 uopeauqe] Sujpm
%0758~ 67589t 00'%0S'ST l00tt0's 1TL85E'T 002621 TUvLy durejsy
%8TT |g5'8€5 00°00Z'L 10000z €5'8ELY 00°009 000 “young dinb3 “Jujey |
|%s18 £SOTT'TS 00'80S'£0T 00°ETL'Z9 1SETB'ETT 00'656'8 |68'062'sT Sdueusuep|
%06 69'099'¢- 000969 100'090% TE'66€ |00°08§ 000 |eUlLIR) — [enOwWaY MOuS
%0°0T 86'00T°Z |00'016'5E 00°TS6°0T 86'TSO€T 00'€66'T yT'E6T's asuadx3 adueinsuj
%9°0T 89'SES'T 00°0Z6°0F 00°0£8'€T 89°'50¥'9T l000tr's TTYST'E lesodsig-pn
%9°06 69°098'ST |00'000°0€ 00°005°LT 69°09€°€E 1000052 LSLSH'S Bemnn|
%6'TT- 78'TEL- 00'ZT8'0T 00°ZET'9 |8T'00v's 00'9/8 £17'88Y'T auoydsjal-un|
%8'L0L ltzT9'or 00°005°C 00°005'T VEa2 3543 00°005 18°LEV'OT auedord-pn|
%S'€9- |ZTLp0'sT- 00°000'0% 00°000°0€ |g8zs6'0T 00°000°0T 8£'S00'T o-1n
%8'S TE6ES'S 00°00059T loo0sz'96 TE'68L'TOT 00°0SL'ET |erivs'eT 3pIF-IN|
%C'8T- 61°86LS- 00'759°0L l000z6'1E 1812192 00°095'% l6gTEE WwawaIRay
%L ¥T- §5°L0T- 00'629'T 00'Tv8 SP'EE9 ‘00'0ZT [ze'901 qesiq wia]-Juol/qesiq waa1-uoys
%ETT- 66'670'T- loa'zes'or 00°8TL'y 10°'899' |00v29 TrELS soueansu)
%' CE- |0£'t80'EE- |00°955"vpz 00°¥12'20T 0£'621°69 loozo9'yT 09'895'6 ddng/'suj y3jeay
%S9 SL°90b'T l00'Tr9'8z 00'TZT'LE SL'LTS'6E | looeot's 06'856'S saxe] jjoheq|
|%9°00T |g06ez'8E 00°08t'99 00°000'8€ |g0'682'9L 00°000°0T £L9'TT6'9T swRAQ)|
%8I~ I1z'529'701- 00°0£9'£56 | 000v5'9ss 64'¥10"VSY 00°£Z€'2L |€T'861°79 safem
Sasuadxg jeujwiay,
% $1Q ALA A QLA Spng |e 9png a1 6T uef - 8T, |nr 123png 671 uef
80z Arenuep

siseg [enJooy
6L1L0/E0
Wd £0:5




9 o 9 abey

douewWIONd JeBpng ss07 % Jyouy

Uoday spreweq)y ajpassyoleyD

9£°829'8YL E- 9t'S08°6€L'T- |8L°LTB'E9LT- 90°0€2‘8TH- 8T'SLZ'T9E- awodu| 19N
9L'8TT'TYL's- TT'S2E28T'T- Y5 YOr'6L1 T- ££°09L'TTE- T6'866'0T€E- awoou IO BN
00°000°9€6'S 00°000°962°2 £5'79T'SOE'T 00'000'8Z€ L' LY0TEE asuadx3 Jalpp |ejo)
%P0 £5'79T'6 00'000'956E 00'000'962°T £5'F9T'SOE'T 00°000'8Z€ Ly LY0'TEE uopezowy g uopepasdaq [e10) .
. 00'000°9¢6' 00°000'962'z 00’0 00°000'82€ 000 12410 - uojezivowy g uorepasdag
|1ovze'sT 6E'9PT'Y uopezIoWY
|67°07¢'665 9'645'58 [euluua) uopepasdaq|
by reSTeET €L'ETEE6T PRYY uopenaidag|
61°585'78T | 168°206'T7 uonepaidoq|
uonezjuowy 13 uonenaidaq
YT TL8'V6T 68'VLI'ETT 66'65LSTT LT'6ET'9T 95°8¥0'07 3WodU| 13YIQ [e30) |
b 34:144 |sTv86'6 000052 00'SLE'Y STESE'PT 00'529 vrrees’e 3wodu] 153193
1%0°00T |sgr001'z |sgo01'z [ 58°001°C SPa2304d Wie|) aduensu|
%00 000 YT TLE LT |68'667'60T 68'662'60T ltzyte'st LTHTY'ST lexde) painguiuo) w:__h_<u
asuadxy fewodu| 1ayi0
% 310 ALA POy 123png |enuuy 1a3png LA 6T uef - g1, |nf 198png 6T uef ] _
6102 Aenuep

siseq [enJooy
6L120/€0
Wd €05



SIN03SO[D 40} SuleA
$9|qBAI9D3I 3)L1S PUB Yy

1uelD 31e15 BUISO|D USYM DAj0S3I O]

silig 38puquay Jo} ded 03 spund a8esaA0)

93ep }28Y2 310)8q Aep jueg wouy pajnd |joihed

%09°€

%L0'9

%YT0

%PT0

%08°€€-
%10
%0 -
%88°ST

%9S°€T

%000
%80°09¢

%eV'Y
%0070
%E8' LT
%CT1'95¢C
%69'91-
%ET'0C-
%0€°0

%

8EE’S

€0€'TSL
€¢C
9ST'ET

(teL'98)
087’1

{620'8)
080'st

6S6'STT

0
S9€°729

0T1°95T
0
T08‘TY
8£9'LT1
(6¥¥)
{vz8's)
%069

aduey)

S/9'€ST LEERYT
9vS'8TT'ET EVC1LETT
€6V VST 0LT'wST
€0v'SeT'6 LYT'TIT'S
£S6TL 789801
£€7'888 £96'988
0SS'vLT 645781
8LE'VIE 86T'TLT
T16°0L6 £56'7S8
¥96'995 ¥96'995
099198 S6Z'6€T
609°€89°E 66V'LTS'E
88T€T6 88T'CT6
112942 OTV'VET
§79'€91 Li6'SY
we'e 169°C
€vL'8e 2958V
009°68¢'T 969°782'C
Adenuer IELIERETg]

6T0Z 1e2A [edsl4
uollisod 19N JO Juswalels

Aioyiny Lioduty apewaqy-a)Iasaiojey)

s}ossy jenden

sjuajeainb3 yse) pue yse)
Spun4 puog anuaAsy
S}9SSY pojdLIsay
$13SSY JUILIN)-UON

s}asse paydulsal |elo]
:MOUIST VYA Ysed
S1USWISIAU|
:Spung puog anuaaay
s1udjeainba ysed pue ysed
Spung JusWIPRUT 818l
eI VEREN]
pun4 asueuajuie v10 ysed
pung |eJaud5 J4) ysed
pund D42 ysed
:spung adJey) Ayjpey te) jejuay
siuajeainba ysed pue ysey
ispung adsey) Aujoed 1a8uassed
$3|geAIDIDY
sjuajeainba ysea pue ysey
:spun4 [epde)
:S195SY pa1dMIsSaY
S}9SSY JUa44n) uUopn

$1955Y pauIsaIun |e1o],

Spun4 paoIsay wold4 ang
13U-3|eAISD3) SIUNOIIY
sasuadx3 piedald
Aujioed Je) |ejuay - adueinsu| predaid
aoueunsu| predasd
sjusjeAINbD ysea pue yse)

1S)1355Y pPajoLIsaun

151955y JU3IN)

s}assy



%00°0
%000

%00°0

%S5°0
%EC 0~
%<0~
%150
%LLY

%9%°0-

%00°0

%

958'799
{£55's17)
(568057)

TST'EL

T4
{T08'9z€)

98uey)

€IT'ST6'TCT LOE'TSZ'TCT
TL088¢ TL0'88E
o'zTe [A{ 1443
009'6 0096
627'9S 62¥'9S
60°'S2S 12T 9£Z'€98'0Z1
LEB'TTL'YOT ¥6%'85670T
297'65570T LST'OT8 V0T
LT L'V 021'vey'yT
08¥'09 9tL'Ls
0Z6°04L°0L T¢L'160'TL
065°0cZ'6T 065°0€Z'6T
Asenuer laquianag

6TOT JEaA [easiy
UOIISOd 33N JO JUSWIE]S

SMO|JINO Pa14a4a(Q pue s}assy |e101

$92IN0S34 JO SMOJJINO PILIBRP |RI0 L
SUOIINQLIIUOY UOISUdd
SUOIINGLIU0D 340 a7 wuay dnolg
193p Jo Buipunyal uo sso
S82JN0S3Y JO SMOJINQ pa.1djaq

S13SSV [e10)
S19SSY JUBLIND-UON [BI0L
(*2a1dap ‘nade jo 10u) sy1assy jeyde) jero)
ssa480ud U uonINIISUO)
uoneziowe pue ueyd J3sep
uonepaidap Jo 18u

‘uawdinba pue syuawanroidwi ‘sSuiping
pueq

Aioyiny Lodily ajsewaq)y-a|jiasanioley)



%550

%ZY0
%ELO
%€9°9

%S0

%000
%000

%L8°T

" %000
" %00°0
" %00°0
" %000
pus-sesA Je pajsnipe 198 asayl %000

%TET
%¥L 89
93euieray Sunwayd %00'0
%000
pus-Jeai je pajsnipe s395 sIyl %000

%ELIT
puimie], 2997 ‘auljle Jayioue pue uedjod 3.z PIO %000
pua-1e34 Je paisnipe s398 syl %000
pua-ieaA je pajsnipe 5188 syl %00'0

%60°0S

%

uonisod
19N pue SMoju| paliajaq ‘sanljigen jelol

uonIsod 13N [e10L
paruIsalun
paILIsey

sjassy [ende) ul pajsaAuj
uonisod 18N

sasuadx] uojsuad
sosuadxy g340 - a7 wia ) dnotg
$321N0S3Yy JO SMO|ju| paaiajaq

saniligel |eyoL
SaLjiger] WALNJ-UON [ejoL

Awjiger] uoisuad 19N

Ayjiger] 9340 @duednsu| wia) dnoig 19N

sueo 98pLa YOQA 01 ang

ADIAIDS 193Q VYA 900Z d/N

unoIsIp puoq

pazinoweun jo you ‘sjqeded spuoq anuasay
ISalM|Iqel] JUBLIN)-UON

S19SSY Pa1dMIS3Y W0 SAU|IGEIT JUBLIND [BIOL
a|qeAed sunodoy [ended
a|qeAed adeuielay
spunj ps1aL1salun 03 anQ
1S9J91u| paNJdY
:S]3SSY PAJOLIISIY W0y djqeAed

51955y PaIdMISIIUN WO SAAN|LGRI] JUBLND |BI0)

spuoq ‘pad/dap Ayandss 4/y
JAR3| PANIIDY
J|0JAeg panidoy
s|qeAed syunodxoy
151355y PALIISAIUN Wol4 3jqedey
sanujiqer] Juaun)

UosOd 12N pue smojjuj paiagaq ‘seiupgen

958'799 €9T'EI6'TZT  LOETST'TZT

189'98% 66Y'20VSTT 818'ST6'VIT

0ZT'sT €96°060'C £¥8S£0°T

9S¥'TTL 685°68L°TT EET'EQ0TT

(s68'052) L¥6°STS'TOT Tr8'9LLTOT

0 S60'9TC §60°9T¢

0 000'9T 000°9T

SLT'SLT 6958479 6€°€0T’9
22101y £LLT'TOTY

0 £€5'TL8 €E€S'TL8

0 000°0¥T 000°0KT

0 788'veL 788'VEL

0 T¥9'0ST 1r9°0ST

0 122'v02'C 122'702°T

S8IVE 658°805'T vLOVLY'T

S8IvE L8E'76 20285

0 £80'T61 L5016V

0 88T€16 88IE16

0 LT Lee'a

066'0VT £€V'899 EYY'LTS

0 £99'z€ £99°CE

0 6¥Z'6TT 6vZ'6TT

0 9076 9L0'V6

0660vT oIy TS118¢

aduey) Adenuer laquiadag

6T0T Jed4 [edsl]

UOI3ISOd 19N 4O UBWIIERIS
Asoyiny wodiry sprewsq|y-ajasanopiey)



VITLTEY G0TEISy T90IaT's
USTLE  €OL'Z05  vOr'les
0 [ 0
1869047 V'SV Zvovse
ZEE'809°L €PR'OSHT 086'163')
WL Tl 1oL
BESTLW'L ¥p'cEs €9C'H6
68T'6L  09%IL  a1Ge
1922051 106'8L0°1 Syi'0nL)
E'66C S0V osr'esz
%95 %59 L7
L6891 09I'LLT 99561
ESYLLT  090'96]
8T €TEs iR

96T ;337 Ls0'e
€100 fuoml  pezy

996’391

ELL’t 1€31 el
9B'6E  BT6E  peeIy
O9EZ  SI0T  Zvel

LoD 96LGI0L Tevosy'o
T 6869 495°699
0 Q ]
69ELEYT SON198T Z6E'IreT
SLO'6E'T QOZ'SWL'T Z9E'E0sTy
UYES 01598 ez
TIPS s2¥606 0£6'696
BISZ9 2299 zowes
LOS'E00'T ELE'CI'T S20'pEl'T
TOI66T  6RL'OIE  9ZZ'66L
"L %SL, %9L
I  OMTEZ  b6TOeT
YSIT  TSUT  pigz
L9678 BELLL 9oL

T 90y v
BP0Z  E0T  Gos'sl

LA L62T o'z
PSEBE  195'¢€  bzoiE
S8BT esbur  zagur

Lev'ee'L

W'
iy 41
192'200"1
HYes

LhLYYT

%18
vT'ZET
%6962
L90'LL

'y
o¥'oC

138°)
$8L°0¢
vizoz

SEL'191'8

S8LTLL
[}

1S¥ITE

WYL’
186’99
016866
15518

VYESL'S

$60°080"1

ost'ese'c
WL
T80
&LoIo
1139 1
L61'380"¢
12401
%8
19T
0E0°93z
1£€'79

ns'e
PE0'PT

“0o'z
LE6'TE
T8L'61

S6'6¥5'6

E'sLY]

909'L80'E
9EY'E6H'E
vLE'TS
LTTELO'T
6y
06L°SLE'S

[

%08

413414
660'1€
858'39

Iz
€TH1

EE1T
474
31474

120'e8s°y

IsT'962

600'169')
WLLITY
0
998'05p
R
SLYTEL'T
687131
%ER
BLTTSH
L85°161

6102 Jea |eos|d-sopsneys Bupesedg

T1E5%699' %4
YO99E8 %81
Ui wee
oSL'IBYT %z
sl %0
I0'5TE %ot
901 %1~
BLVELET  %T
6EL'961 %401
%08 %~
WSLST %
PEOLST s
T %01
e e~
Y5L'0 %01
176 %61
SLISK 36p1
LYTES %ST

18

EEP'SPI

fo1'sTe
teE'Lz
8996

seL'Lre

S81'9L1

LOR'TEY
6OB'IZE
H |
9b5°901
L66°E
LITHE
995°0r
%"
vsI'eE
106'ZE

5L

S08'1

9”81

9T

#9018 WroNmRAAL FQRUOITOTY,
«PULDY 0 1My

"OTT spumny
Bmag/esnanagpooy

10 puaog,

auliy

y-iaf Aoy

VI3 daoiion e

TI001-¥O
podwng suoyen fng Og.r

NGATY Wupyng

RI0IS dqogIval

o8] PO ponviouy

SIAVATSRY poumdIqy

Sdodupssny Paunjaug

sueppiIip 10y

oupw
HopoMy (oaniag

Cgy

uONDIY [suaey
poyzapny qy

unsauyy
Suodg) ooy

U o0ddiiy
FTMYRIATY 11TASAII0TRYED

OHD \“



VITLZEY 00TCISY T9'IRTS Lon'sva's 96L'slo'L 1ev'oss's

SLE'SLE  E0L'z08
[} 0
186908 1Ig'6ar'e
I56'300°T evaoser
WL ¥l
SETLWT véKECE
681'6L 095
19L°208") 1069481
EVE'S6Z  940'v6E
%95 %59
L6891 91'LL)
996'801  65¥°LLY
9T exes
9I6'T et
£100Z  suo'sr
27 B 151
988'6E BeT'sc
P9’ sro'0z

1195
0

arws's
086'16K'1
108'EL
E9E'LI6
BLI'69
Y100
SE1'58z
%69
198'561
050961
1r'es

Lio's
¥6T'L1

a6y
Y6E Iy
TI¥'61

LTI 686'0L  698°699
[ 0 ]

GOE'L69T SOV 1987 T6E'IPS'T

SLO'GEYY 0OT'SPe'l Tog'era'y
WSS 01s98 BT
S9I'TH6  CIV'6S6  056'696

SIS SIT09 gow'ss
LFN0T ELEEGIT F20PEIT
IBI'G6E  68L0NE  9ET'sz
%IL %sL %9L
WIEIT  IWIET  weT'oze
98SIT  USTR  wigL
2o I T TR YL
81t f0Y  Lopc
98K 1ZE0T 6088l
VUL WTT w0
VeE8E  I9s'es puic
SNl sevll  geey

LevesTL

SLYL9L

SEL'19I'8

$LTIL

1S¥'92T's
o'z
016'866
155°'1S
10K'906°C
SSE'ZTE

891192

1e9'19z

viL'E
STE6I
£88'1

274 14
6P0°0C

960°080"

951'05E°s
T60'YEL'T
TIZ'09
L0061
0ts'hs
L61'880°C
LET0vE
%b8
SIT¥eT
0£0°08z
1EE'TY
1s'e
vE0'11

LE6'TT
ZBL'6T

S6'695°6

PE'8LEY

909290
IEFEGHT
vLE'TS
el
(1373
06L'5LE'E
L9268
%08

ZISELE

660'STE

%l

%le
%UeT

%91
%5

%81~

%lp

e
k544
S%bT

/LIS

£60°088

€6£°666'
TBE'SHP
0
6657825
T16've
w101z
1871z
%8
LIS'LLY
L60°6L1
SSE6E

us'y
Izs's
9L0°'1
L8
62521

610Z lee [eosiy-sopspe)g Bunesedo

8I50LES

98’686

LEFIYT
$96'8LL"1
st
L1919
o9L'se
nYLI'T
56'vET
%08
475 ]
TL'Ler
6€9'8Y

9EV'T
810°Z1

ar
£80°L1
065'5}

%2

%8¢

%l

%5
%91
%t
%8

%Il

S%se-
%

%8
S4€1
%61

19Tk

WEEZL

PRE'BOE
9EVITE

€EL'LL
s1se

986'00L

65TES1

8H'98E
9ITL6T
0
98598
89T
r'peE
€1Z'8E
%08

[ (X% 4
LUI0E
ot'9

vie
W'l

$81
(N114
EPET

VSOU 10000001 ONRTIRRATA,
<PUMNTY 20D poptay

OTT ‘spuisginy,
URagRINsagpong

1ong ooy
aupny
Veor davipy
V49 mdonionyyn
TFI00I-¥D

Pl susipg 1F Ogd
ARy Dupgany
qvag aqugmay
4aang peoy pauviduy
SadNuaREDY PIRmIAG
SIFNuICTDY poumpausy
SuoysIaTE) 1Wa,

Ay
woguAy N0

Gsnwy
UopmAY fosoua0)
PRpRRm) ay
JuBLupr

SuoBLdD Yosdipy

4 0dd1y

TTEYNIATIY 3145320016713

OHD. =

trrl\



YITLTTY 00TELYY 29919 LTRI0Y 96L'610°L 16voRg'y L6YISTL  ceLverg

gavBBEus-EwﬂEu'

RY'EsL's SEY'PS'6  LTTI66'6 we STLHOS'S  0£9'8S6'S %z WPLLS TIrsss »AUUMBY 45D IOy

YUCSLE LS W% gzzace 636'0L9 699690 SLB'LOL SBLTIL

[} (] 0 0 ] 0 0 [} 960°030" HRUYT  SSLOMT % BLUSEE  SOS'TEIT %l 189°S11 0L 1EY "OTT ‘spumyng

Ioga¥oIeag/poo g

18608 11C'62Z L2v'ons' e9p2607 WOI9T WEWET  ZpeTIrE 314,43 9L0SE'S N9L0E WROBIIY  wer 6590627 Lb0'SZET  wip 99T'162 689°0i¢ Iang jmoy,

TSERSL EHBOSIT 0RSIGHT $10'550's 0TSl WEENST  serzagy 00T Z60'veTT sErer's Wire'Lo6T %9z 886'699'T  LLVTOIT  %pp 901'vzT 505°6LE auay

WL T 06 nggs 0IS'98 gfTw RO'EY 286'99 Ty v26'1s o %0 [ s1 %0 0 0 Vs Ay

TLIO'T EV'EES  EocIls SIITH6 2695  0£6'6es 199'800'L  016'866 ZLo10" krewt Wt sy SELEBS  BITU6Y  %ig 9%T'SH 109's8 V-1 amdodioD e

6316 09F'IL  sir'es 8IS ST ogss To3'9s 15515 249 4 bes'sh 198'sy %% 69T evese %er +20'z £85'1 TI001-¥D
Padsig SuosD 1984 Oy

19L408'T 106'8L0°1 SPI 00" L0500z £LE'C61E sTo'bErT LLVIT  T0V906T  L6I'ssoc 06L'sLE'S PEEY %S VETEVT  SLE'ISST %o £P9'EE PSL'ESE HIUMIY Bupping

EE6ST L0V osreng 66 GBLOIE  9zz'e6T us'ioe €557

LETOVE L9T'T6E ey %t 00T L9E2UT gl L/ STYLE S1038 SjqEpOAY
%95 %59 %69 %L %L %9L %18 %98 % %08 %S~ 54 ] %62 %s- %L %0L 4462301 poo] pruviaugy
L6391 O91LLT  Lom'sey THEIT  WFIT  veTeze Te WI'TT NTysy eIs'els D6S"LyE %y S8LT0T PN %s $92'¢T T RIANUASO] pacwrdaqy
996'891 659441 09p'9sI OIS watm 966°86T €919z 050'982. 660'SIE Te6BE %9 USWT  L96EIT war SLV'ST 9T'9r SaFuasvey pauvjoug
8T @B W' em LU w'mL o't $66°EL 16 258'g9 08L's8 %02 06T9  E8g'sy %l- [31:5] L9 Eoysadg oy
96T E'C e sy 90 Lsve L'y psLe s nuey 9y %K11- Tes'e 921 %ET 09§ 09 Loy
€100 SRt pezyg SWOT  vZEBZ com'mr ov'oz $T5'61 $60'¥1 £TI'1 L9981 REE &v0or LIEET HS1- 828°1 6621 YORTIAY [osavaD)
Jeooy
£LLh (4] ¥86'1 LT 1724 b x4 1881 €381 L0'c €17 T %01 8121 £PEL HEY [ gz iy
GBEEE  BBZ'6E  ME'y  pogag 195%€ veo'ts s8L'og T8L'RT ie6'ze sz irose HEL WY Tee'6l %5 STET 6612 uogOIAY [osuRn
0¥ S0 Zvel gy £€6Y'L een viz'or 60’02 zaz'sl 5874 BL6'LE %IT [0 si6°L) % 08T STET 1vpeum) ay
Suvsuny
suopurdg afvsdapy

138 0dy!vy
JTUVNIOTY IVUASIIIOWYRD
6102 Jee) jeosiy-sopsyeyg Bugesedg

OHD -

g



CHO

A I R P O R T
TO: Members of the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority
FROM: Melinda C. Crawford, Executive Director
DATE: March 12, 2019
SUBJECT: Action Item #1 — Annual Appointment of a Chairman, a Vice-Chairman,

and the Secretary/Treasurer

RECOMMENDATION:  To select a Chairman, a Vice-Chairman, and the Secretary/Treasurer in
accordance with the Authority’s enabling legislation.

BACKGROUND: Chapter 864 of the Acts of Assembly of 2003 § 6 states “The Authority
shall annually elect one of its members to serve as chairman, and another member to serve as vice
chairman.” Historically the Commission also performs this same appointment for consistency.

The same section also states, “The Authority shall also elect annually a secretary/treasurer, who may or
may not be a member of the Authority.”



—1

CHO

4 1 R P O R T

TO: Members of the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority

FROM: Melinda C. Crawford, Executive Director

DATE: March 12, 2019

SUBJECT: Action Item #2: FY-2018 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

RECOMMENDATION: For the Board to Accept the FY-2018 Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report as presented.

BACKGROUND: As noted within the transmittal letter on page one of the FY-2018

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report; this report has been published in accordance with the
requirements of the enabling legislation as well as the master bond indenture of trust which governs the
issuance of indebtedness by the Authority. Moreover, it was prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) by a firm of licensed certified public accountants.

The goal of the independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the Authority’s financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2018 are free of material misstatement. The independent auditor
concluded, based upon their audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified
(“clean”) opinion and that the Authority’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018 are in
conformity with GAAP. Within the accompanying FY-2018 CAFR Management Letter, the auditors
have identified four items of concern along with recommendations to address these items. The following
are the four items that were identified and staff’s response to each item:

Item #1- Capital Asset Activity: The surface parking expansion project is recorded in an expense account
during the year for budget purposes, since it is not funded by state or federal grants. At year-end, an audit
adjustment was required to reclassify this activity to construction in process. We recommend management
review expense accounts for possible capital assets and record adjustments as appropriate prior to
finalizing the trial balance.

Item #1 Response: This was on oversight this year. Management will be sure to review every expense
account for possible capital assets. A checklist will be instituted for year-end procedures.

Item #2 - Late Fees: One check selected for testing on our random test of disbursements included $57.49
in late fees and service charges. The Code of Virginia §2.2-4352 requires that every agency of local
government that acquires goods or services, or conducts any other type of contractual business with a
nongovernmental, privately owned enterprise, shall promptly pay for the completed delivered goods or
services by the required payment date. We recommend that all bills be paid on or before due dates to avoid
unnecessary fees and service charges.

Item #2 Response: Staff will make effort to pay bills timely. While not the case with this particular bill, it
should be noted for next year that our postal carrier retired and since then, there have been numerous
substitutes that have not handled the mail for us or our tenants timely and there have been some late




charges incurred. As an example, on January 28, 2019, one of our tenants brought us a stack of mail that
was delivered to them in error that day and most of the mail was for the November time frame. Staff does
attempt to contact vendors and ask for a reprieve for late fees in these cases, but not all the vendors will
accommodate the request.

Item #3- Unclaimed Property: In accordance with the Unclaimed Property Act, items outstanding for
more than one year, regardless of dollar amount, must be submitted to the Virginia Department of
Treasury. In addition, there is a due diligence requirement for items exceeding $100, for which a letter
must be sent to the payee prior to filing with the State. Staff misinterpreted this requirement and only
submitted items exceeding $100 as Unclaimed Property. We recommend staff responsible for submitting
unclaimed property review the State’s requirements to ensure the appropriate information is being
reported. All checks outstanding for more than one year should be filed as Unclaimed Property, after due
diligence requirements have been met.

Item #3 Response: In our internal procedures for Unclaimed Property, we have added that staff should
review the State’s requirements every year to ensure the proper information is being reported.

Item #4- VNav Input: Annual entity-wide increases are approved by the board and reviewed for accuracy
before submission into the payroll system. Employee change forms are completed and reviewed by HR
and supervisors. However, there is no procedure for verifying the accurate information has been uploaded
to VNav other than monthly reconciliations of EE contributions. We recommend a formal review process
be implemented for entering changes into VNav.

Item #4 Response: This will be addressed when we update procedure manuals in FY19

The minutes of the Audit Committee meeting held on January 30, 2019 will be provided for review at the
Board’s meeting. Within the minutes, the Audit Committee recommended that the Authority proceeds
with the second of the four year options within its contract with Robinson Farmer & Cox Associates.
This option will allow the firm to provide professional audit and associated financial services to the
Authority to include the audit of the financial reports for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. As per the
Audit Committee Charter, the committee will be responsible for the oversight of this audit.

PRIOR ACTION: N/A

FUNDING: N/A

FINANCIAL IMPACT: N/A

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment #1 — FY2018 CAFR Governance Letter
Attachment #2 — FY2018 CAFR Management Letter

Attachment #3 to be provided - The FY2018 Comprehensive Annual

Financial Report (CAFR) to be sent separately
Item #4 to be provided — January, 30 2019 Audit Committee Minutes

PRESENTATION: N/A



ROBINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES

A PROFESSIONAL LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Communication with Those Charged with Governance

To the Honorable Members of the
Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority

We have audited the financial statements of Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority for the year ended
June 30, 2018. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities
under generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, as
well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated
such information in our letter to you dated May 23, 2018. Professional standards also require that we
communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Matters

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority are described in Note 2 to the
financial statements. As described in Note 15 to the financial statements, Charlottesville-Atbemarle Airport
Authority changed accounting policies related to other postemployment benefits by adopting Statement of
Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB Statement) Nos. 75 Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions and 85, Omnibus 2017. Accordingly, the cumulative effect of
the accounting changes as of the beginning of the year is reported in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Position. We noted no transactions entered into by Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport
Authority during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant
transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based
on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future
events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from
those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were useful lives of capital
assets used to calculate depreciation and pension and OPEB related items.

Management’s estimate of useful lives and related depreciation is based on established guidelines and
experience. Pension and OPEB related items were calculated by an actuary contracted by the State
retirement system. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop depreciation expense and
pension and OPEB related items in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial

statements taken as a whole.
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.



Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, there was one misstatement
detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management that was material, either individually
or in the aggregate, to the financial statements. This was a reclassification of parking project activity of
$251,665 from expenses to construction in progress.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or
the auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our

audit.
Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated January 29, 2019.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application
of an accounting principle to Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority’s financial statements or a
determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional
standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the
relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority’s
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our

responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to management’s discussion and analysis and the schedules related to
pension and OPEB funding, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic
financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the

RSI.



Other Matters: (Continued)

We were engaged to report on the schedule of administrative expenses, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards, and the schedule of Passenger Facility Charges collected and expended and interest credited,
which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information,
we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the
information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the
information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared
and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

We were not engaged to report on the introductory section or statistical section, which accompany the
financial statements but are not RSI. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on it.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of the Authority Board, audit committee, and management of
Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

cﬁ:mu.m. G Assseshi

rlottesville, Virginia
January 29, 2019



ROBINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS A PROFESSIONAL LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

Date: January 29, 2019
MEMORANDUM TO: Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority

FROM: Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates

REGARDING: FY 17-18 Audit

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport
Authority for the year ended June 30, 2018, we considered the Authority’s internal control structure to plan
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to
provide assurance on the internal control structure.

However, during our audit, we noted certain matters involving the internal control structure and other
operational matters that are presented for your consideration. This letter does not affect our report dated
January 29, 2019, on the financial statements of Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority. Our comments
and recommendations, all of which have been discussed with appropriate members of management, are
intended to improve the internal control structure or result in other operating efficiencies. We will be
pleased to discuss these comments in further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of
these matters, or to assist you in implementing the recommendations.

Capital Asset Activity

The surface parking expansion project is recorded in an expense account during the year for budget
purposes, since it is not funded by state or federal grants. At year-end, an audit adjustment was required
to reclassify this activity to construction in process. We recommend management review expense accounts
for possible capital assets and record adjustments as appropriate prior to finalizing the trial balance.

Late Fees

One check selected for testing on our random test of disbursements included $57.49 in late fees and service
charges. The Code of Virginia §2.2-4352 requires that every agency of local government that acquires goods
or services, or conducts any other type of contractual business with a nongovernmental, privately owned
enterprise, shall promptly pay for the completed delivered goods or services by the required payment date.
We recommend that all bills be paid on or before due dates to avoid unnecessary fees and service charges.

Unclaimed Property

In accordance with the Unclaimed Property Act, items outstanding for more than one year, regardless of
dollar amount, must be submitted to the Virginia Department of Treasury. In addition, there is a due
diligence requirement for items exceeding $100, for which a letter must be sent to the payee prior to filing
with the State. Staff misinterpreted this requirement and only submitted items exceeding $100 as
Unclaimed Property. We recommend staff responsible for submitting unclaimed property review the State’s
requirements to ensure the appropriate information is being reported. All checks outstanding for more than
one year should be filed as Unclaimed Property, after due diligence requirements have been met.

VNav Input

Annual entity-wide increases are approved by the board and reviewed for accuracy before submission into
the payroll system. Employee change forms are completed and reviewed by HR and supervisors. However,
there is no procedure for verifying the accurate information has been uploaded to VNav other than monthly
reconciliations of EE contributions. We recommend a formal review process be implemented for entering
changes into VNav.



—-7

CHO

A 1} R P O R T

TO: Members of the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority
FROM: Melinda C. Crawford, Executive Director

DATE: March 12, 2019

SUBJECT: Action Item #3- 2019 Audit Committee Membership

RECOMMENDATION:  For the Board to appoint the 2018 Audit Committee by approving
Resolution No: 2019-1 “Appointment of the 2019 Membership of the

Audit Committee”

BACKGROUND:

On March 21, 2012 (last updated on May 21, 2015 by Resolution 2015-2), the Authority passed a
resolution creating the Audit Committee Charter. Within this charter the Audit Committee was
charged with advising the Authority of financial and accounting matters relating to the Authority’s

audited financial reports. Each year by resolution, the Authority appoints the membership of the
Audit Committee for that year. Resolution No: 2019-1 is attached which outlines the membership of

the 2019 Audit Committee.

PRIOR ACTION: N/A
FUNDING: N/A
FINANCIAL IMPACT: N/A

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment #1 —Resolution No. 2019-1 “Appointment of the 2019
Membership of the Audit Committee”

PRESENTATION: N/A



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-1
ESTABLISHING 2019 MEMBERSHIP OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

WHEREAS, by resolution dated March 15, 2017 (“Committee Charter”) the Charlottesville-

Albemarle Airport Authority reauthorized an audit committee previously created by resolution approved
on March 21, 2012, charging the audit committee to advise the governing body of the Authority on
financial and accounting matters of or relating to the Authority’s audited financial reports, consistent with
the responsibilities referenced within said resolution; and

WHEREAS, the membership of the committee is to be constituted on an annual basis by the

Authority’s governing board, consistent with the membership established by the Committee Charter (last
updated on May 21, 2015 by Resolution 2015-2), and the governing board desires to establish the
membership of the committee for calendar year 2019; now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the 2019 membership of the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport

Authority Audit Committee shall be as follows:

1.

The City of Charlottesville’s Director of Finance, or his or her designee;

2. The Albemarle County Director of Finance, or his or her designee;

3. Addison Barnhardt, a member of the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Commission, and who is
hereby appointed to serve on the committee for a term concurrent with his or her term of service on
the Commission; and

4. Craig Lefanowicz, an individual who the board hereby finds to be deeply-skilled in accounting, and
who was appointed to serve on the committee to complete the unexpired term of an individual who
resigned. That term expired on December 31, 2017. Mr. Lefanowicz expressed an interest to
continue serving on the committee, therefore the 1% of his two (2) three (3) year possible terms began
on 1/1/18 and Mr. Lefanowicz may serve on the Audit Committee through December 31, 2023.

5. Don Long, who shall serve both as a representative of this board and as an individual who the board
hereby finds to be deeply-skilled in business and/or business law. Mr. Long may serve on the Audit
Committee through December 31, 2020, or until he is no longer a member of this Board, whichever
first occurs.

ADOPTED this 12™ day of March, 2019.

Vote

Ayes: Noes:

Certified

By:

Melinda Crawford, Secretary



—v

CHO

A ! R P O R T

TO: Members of the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority

FROM: Melinda C. Crawford, Executive Director

DATE: March 12, 2019

SUBJECT: Action Item #4- Approval of Revisions to the Authority’s Purchasing
Regulations

RECOMMENDATION:  For the Board to approve Revisions to the Authority’s Purchasing
Regulations by approving Resolution No: 2019-2 “A Resolution to

Approve the Revision of the Authority’s Purchasing Regulations”

BACKGROUND: The Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority is a Political Subdivision
of the Commonwealth of Virginia and must adhere to the procurement regulations as outlined in the
Virginia Public Procurement Act, VA Code § 2.2-4300 et seq. (“Procurement Act” or “VPPA”),
Each year, the Virginia Public Procurement Act is subject to revisions.

On March 21, 2012 the Board approved a revision to the Authority’s Purchasing Regulations (formerly
referred to as the “Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority Procurement Policy & Purchasing
Procedures™), and on September 22, 2015 the Board approved Resolution No. 2014-5 “A Resolution to
Approve Procedures Allowing the Authority to Utilize the Design-Build Method of Procurement for
Construction Projects” which outlined procedures that were consistent with those adopted by the Virginia
Secretary of Administration for utilizing design-build or construction management contracts.

On December 12, 2018 the Board approved an amendment to the “Charlottesville Albemarle Airport
Authority Procurement Policy & Purchasing Procedures™ which raised the single quote limit required for
professional services from $25,000 to $80,000 due to revisions to the Virginia Public Procurement Act
which allowed for the increased limit.

Since the Virginia Public Procurement Act, VA Code § 2.2-4300 is subject to updates, the Authority’s
Purchasing Regulations and related “Procurement Regulations Design Build (DB) and Construction
Management (C/M) Procedures” (which is Attachment No. 2 of the Authority’s Purchasing Regulations)
needed to be revised to reflect these updates. Reducing the regulations from a 31 page document to
approximately 22 pages (with Attachment No. 1 “Federal Procurement Guidelines” which is required
prior to the Authority’s 2019 Audit) has resulted in several changes to the regulations, but one major
proposed change is the dollar limits required for the various types of solicitation of the purchase of
“goods” and “non-professional services” which is outlined as follows:



Prior $ limits

Proposed $ limits

Purchase of Goods:

Single Quotation

$1 - $5,000

$1 - $10,000

Three Solicitations

$5,001 - $30,000

$10,001 - $60,000

Four Written Solicitations

$30,001 - $100,000

$60,001 - $100,000

Purchase of Non-Professional Services:

Single Quotation

$1 - $15,000

$1 - $30,000

Three Solicitations

$15,001 - $30,000

$30,001 - $60,000

Four Written Solicitations

$30,001 - $100,000

$60,001 - $100,000

Attached is a copy of the revised Authority’s Purchasing Regulations.

PRIOR ACTION:
FUNDING:
FINANCIAL IMPACT:

ATTACHMENTS:

PRESENTATION:

Noted above

N/A

N/A

Attachment #1 —Resolution No. 2019-2 “A Resolution to Approve the
Revision of the Authority’s Purchasing Regulations”
Attachment #2 - Revised “Authority’s Purchasing Regulations”

N/A




RESOLUTION NO. 2019-2
A Resolution to Approve the Revision of the Authority’s Purchasing Regulations

WHEREAS; the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority is the governing body of the
Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport as set forth in the Act of Assembly, 2003, Chapter 864; and,

WHEREAS; the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority is a Political Subdivision of the
Commonwealth of Virginia and must adhere to the procurement regulations as outline in the Virginia
Public Procurement Act, VA Code § 2.2-4300 et seq. (“Procurement Act” or “VPPA”); and,

WHEREAS; on March 21, 2012, the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority’s governing
board (Board) last approved a revision to the Authority’s Purchasing Regulations (formerly referred to as
the “Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority Procurement Policy & Purchasing Procedures™, and

WHEREAS, on September 22, 2015 the Board approved Resolution No. 2014-5 “A Resolution
to Approve Procedures Allowing the Authority to Utilize the Design-Build Method of Procurement for
Construction Projects” which outlined procedures that are consistent with those adopted by the Virginia
Secretary of Administration for utilizing design-build or construction management contracts; and,

WHEREAS, on December 12, 2018 the Board approved that an amendment to the
“Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority Procurement Policy & Purchasing Procedures” which raised
the single quote limit required for professional services from $25,000 to $80,000; and,

WHEREAS, the Virginia Public Procurement Act, VA Code § 2.2-4300 et seq. has been
updated and the Authority’s Purchasing Regulations and related “Procurement Regulations Design Build
(DB) and Construction Management (C/M) Procedures” (which is Attachment No. 2 of the Authority’s
Purchasing Regulations) need to be revised to reflect those updates. Attachment No. 1 “Federal
Procurement Guidelines” which is required prior to the Authority’s 2019 Audit is not included in
the revised Authority’s Purchasing Regulations but will be submitted to the Board at a later date

for approval; now, therefore

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the governing board of the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport
Authority hereby approves and adopts the Authority’s Purchasing Regulations as updated on March 12,
2019.

ADOPTED this 12" day of March, 2019.

Vote
Ayes: Noes:

Certified
By:
Melinda Crawford, Secretary




CHO

A I R P © R ¥
TO: Members of the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority
FROM: Melinda C. Crawford, Executive Director
DATE: March 12, 2019
SUBJECT: Action Item #5 - Design-Build Construction Method for Parking Deck
Project

RECOMMENDATION:  For the Board to make the determination that the use of the Progressive
Design-Build Construction Method for the Parking Deck Project is in the
best interest of the Authority

BACKGROUND: In accordance with the Commonwealth’s Procurement Guidelines, the
Board approved Resolution No. 2014-5 “A Resolution to Approve Procedures Allowing the Authority to
Utilize the Design-Build Method of Procurement for Construction Projects” on September 22, 2015, and
these procedures have been updated in the “Authority’s Purchasing Regulations Revisions”.

Prior to moving forward with any Design-Build Method of Procurement, specific criteria and steps must
be followed. The first step requires the Authority to provide written determination that competitive
sealed bidding is not practicable or fiscally advantageous. In order to make this determination, staff
secured the professional engineering services of RS&H Inc. to assist with an investigation of the Parking
Deck Project, and the advantages/disadvantages of using each of the four-project delivery methods
available to the Authority (1. Design-Bid-Build (DBB), 2. Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR), 3.
Conventional Design-Build (cDB), and 4. Progressive Design-Build (pDB)).

A report titled “Finding of Public Interest for the Use of Progressive Design-Build Construction Method
for the New Parking Deck Construction At Charlottesville Albemarle Airport” was compiled during this
investigation and is attached for consideration. Based on this investigation, I have made a determination
that the use of Progressive Design-Build contracting for the New Parking Deck Project is in the best

interest of the Authority. The Board’s approval of this determination is needed prior to moving forward

with this contracting method.

PRIOR ACTION: Staff contracted with RS&H Inc. to prepare the “Finding of Public Interest
Report”
FUNDING: N/A

FINANCIAL IMPACT;: A work order in the amount of $23,230 was executed with RS&H Inc.

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment #1 ~Finding of Public Interest for Progressive Design-Build
Contracting Method for New Parking Deck at Charlottesville Albemarle
Airport.

PRESENTATION: N/A



Finding of Public Interest for the Use of Progressive Design-Build Contracting Method
New Parking Deck Construction at Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport: Charlottesville, Virginia

The Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport (CHO) has experienced a 97% growth in passenger traffic since
2008. As a result of this significant growth, the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority (CAAA) has
an urgent need to increase the number of public parking spaces at CHO. To address this need, a project is
being proposed to construct a four-level parking structure, with each level containing approximately 250
parking spaces. CAAA has requested a review to determine if a project delivery via “progressive design-
build contracting” will allow for expedited construction at a reduced cost, and will afford an opportunity
for competition in the project’s procurement.

Project Background

CAAA is investigating a project which will design and construct a four-level parking structure containing
approximately 1000 parking spaces (hereafter referred to as “the Project” or “parking deck™). This
proposed parking deck would be sited at a vacant area to the north of the existing long-term parking lot at
the north end of Bowen Loop (see Figure 1).

j;_.‘._-ﬁ?-, i

r
TERMINAL
BUILDING

PROJECT
SITE

Figure I - Proposed Parking Deck Site at CHO

The Project was included in CHO’s last Masterplan Update (2005) and has been shown as a proposed
project on CHO’s Airport Layout Plan since December of 2004 as a multi-level parking deck.

Parking availability is a major constraint on the growth of CHO. As economic activity in the region has
increased in recent years, the utilization of parking facilities at CHO has experienced a dramatic increase.
Due to this increase in usage, passengers have routinely been required to park in CHO’s new employee
parking lot since it was built in 2015.

Page 10f 8



The design of an expansion to CHO’s northern “Economy Parking Lot” is underway. This surface parking
lot expansion project will be constructed on the north end of the airport loop road in order to provide
approximately 100 additional public parking spaces for airport users and is expected to be open for use in
late-2019. However, this parking lot expansion is anticipated only to satisfy existing demand, which is
expected to increase over time.

Project Delivery Methods Analysis

CAAA retained the services of RS&H, Inc. a consultant with extensive experience and expertise in
project delivery methods to assist it with an analysis of four project delivery methods: 1. Design-Bid-
Build (DBB), 2. Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR), 3. Conventional Design-Build (cDB), and 4.
Progressive Design-Build (pDB).

RS&H, Inc. is national architectural and engineering firm established in 1941, with over 1,200 employee
and 61 offices nationwide, with extensive real life experience in project delivery methods. The firm is an
industry partner member of the Design Build Institute of America (DBIA) with several staff members
DBIA certified one of which led this advisory services provided to CAAA.

As a reference value for all project delivery methods a $20 million anticipated construction cost for the
Project was used for the analysis. This costs is associated with a Design-Bid-Build delivery method,
which is the conventional procurement method for CAAA projects. Anticipated Project costs and
schedules were developed assuming precast construction techniques would be utilized. Schedules used for
the analysis were developed with information available and knowledge of industry norms for projects of
similar scale and complexity and are not proposed as the project schedule.

Design-Bid-Build (DBB)

Overview

The DBB model of project delivery results in the Owner procuring two independent contracts, one with
the designer (A/E) and one with the Contractor (GC). The procurement process in DBB also requires a
linear process whereby the A/E is selected to produce Construction Documents suitable for bidding. The
bidding phase is then initiated as the second procurement cycle leading to an executed contract with a GC
for construction. The contract is typically awarded to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder.

Advantages

¢ The Owner maintains control of the design and design schedule throughout the design process.
e Uses a competitive selection process for both the A/E and the GC.

Disadvantages

® The Owner is responsible for procuring and managing two contracts. The linear process of
contract procurement results in additional time for the project delivery schedule.

e The Owner is also required to manage two contracts resulting in additional resource allocation
throughout the duration of the project. The two contract model of DBB has proven less successful
with respect to schedule and cost management due to the nature of divergent objectives between
the designers and contractors. As a result Owners are typically placed in a difficult position
between the A/E and GC.

¢ GCs often times have alternative methods of construction worthy of consideration.

Page 2 of 8



o Unfortunately the DBB model does not provide a means for Owners to benefit from a
GC’s experience and recommendations until after contract award.

o Should the Owner elect to exercise a GC’s recommendation it typically results in an
Owner initiated revision deemed additional services to the A/E with associated fees and
time requirements.

* Significantly, the Owner will not know the construction cost until the bidding phase is complete.
In many instances the bid phase results in additional time to perform Value Engineering (VE) to
reduce or optimize project scope to successfully negotiate a contract with the GC that falls within
the Owner budget.

Anticipated Project Schedule:

A/E RFQ issued — May 2019

A/E Contract Executed — August 2019

Invitation for Bid — April 2020

GC Contract Executed and Notice to Proceed — July 2020
Certificate of Occupancy Issued — February 2022

Total anticipated project duration: 33 months

Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR)

With the Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) delivery method, the Owner first selects and contracts
with a design firm, similar to a DBB project. The design firm selection process can be based on price,
qualifications and any other criteria deemed necessary by the owner. Once the designer is selected, the
project proceeds with the early stages of the design process with the owner’s intent to procure and
manage a second contract with a construction manager (CM) when the design is typically 30 to 60 percent
complete. The Owner may include qualifications and project approach in the selection process; however,
price is typically the primary selection criteria for CMAR contract award. CMAR results in a delivery
method which commits the CM to deliver the project within a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) based
on the completion of construction documents and specifications at the time of the GMP, plus any
reasonably incidental items or tasks.

Advantages

¢ CMAR provides the Owner with a degree of early contractor involvement depending upon the
stage of design completion when added to the project delivery team.

o This allows the CMAR to serve the Owner as a pre-construction consultant with value
engineering, cost estimating and constructability reviews for the remainder of the design
process.

* Asthe CMAR begins working as part of a collaborative team with the Owner and designer, the
possibility to “fast track” delivery of specific scope packages can be completed in advance of the
full design similar to cDB and pDB.

¢ Similar to pDB, the establishment of a GMP ensures the Owner receives the project scope,
quality and budget on schedule as agreed to prior to design completion.

* Similar to pDB, the transparency of GMP pricing for construction, risk and contingencies affords
the Owner confidence in fair and equitable pricing.

Disadvantages

Page 3 of 8



* CMAR requires the Owner to procure and manage two separate contracts, one for design and the
other for construction.

¢ Although CMAR provides the Owner with early contractor involvement, the typical timing of 30
to 60 percent design completion may still result in design change orders and schedule delay
should the Owner elect to incorporate CMAR recommendations that require re-design effort.

» All parties seek to establish a collaborative team approach under the CMAR method. However,
there is no contractual requirement in place to protect the Owner from the typical disputes that
arise between designer and contractor that often lead to change orders for additional cost and/or
time.

o There is a smaller chance of contracting a pair of designers and contractors who have
demonstrated a successful past working relationship as compared to cDB or pDB.

Anticipated Project Schedule:

e A/ERFQ issued — May 2019

e AJE Contract Executed — August 2019

e CMAR RFQ — December 2019

¢ CMAR RFP - February 2020

¢ CMAR Contract Executed and Notice to Proceed — April 2020
e Certificate of Occupancy Issued — July 2021

Total anticipated project duration: 26 months

Conventional Desicn-Build (cDB)

Overview

Conventional Design-Build (cDB) has been a recognized delivery method for more than 25 years and
gaining momentum as a preferred contracting' model in the building industry by owners, contractors and
designers. ¢cDB differs from DBB distinctly by the structure of contracts: in cDB the Owner holds a single
contract with the GC (typically) who is responsible for both design and construction services, versus DBB
whereby the owner procures and manages two separate contracts for both design and construction.

The cDB project delivery model typically includes the owner procuring design services to develop either
a design criteria package or a more developed set of “bridging documents” as part of the Request for
Proposal (RFP) to procure the cDB team contract. The ¢cDB team completes the design and construction
phases in accordance with the RFP requirements. The Owner may retain the services of the RFP designer
to serve as an owner’s representative to assist in cDB team selection, and to conduct reviews of the ¢cDB

team’s design and monitor construction progress.

The ¢DB team selection is accomplished with a two-step process. The first step is a prequalification
process (issuance of an RFQ) to determine offerors qualified to submit proposals. The second step is to
issue an RFP for technical and price proposals, from which a ¢cDB team will be selected.

Advantages

* Single-source contracting results in increased accountability as a single entity (the cDB team) is

responsible for design and construction.
e cDB fosters a culture of collaboration. Owners benefit from the innovation and collaboration that

occurs when designers and contractors work together in developing the design, cost and schedule

Page 4 of 8



throughout the project delivery process. The integrated delivery team approach of cDB has
consistently proven to deliver projects on an accelerated schedule and with greater cost certainty
and schedule performance.

¢ The project delivery schedule of cDB can be expedited with “fast track” delivery of specific
scope packages that can be completed in advance of the full design such as civil and
infrastructure work or procure long lead materials and/or equipment enabling timely delivery and
cost efficiencies ahead of inflationary or supply-and-demand resource limitations.

e There is a reduction in Change Orders and disputes for the Owner to manage and negotiate.

Disadvantages

e  Owners rely on preliminary designs and performance specifications to procure the cDB team,
which may result in less control of the design through the later phases of development.
o Note: owners may elect to exercise more control of design by developing the bridging
documents further and including more prescriptive specifications. However, this
approach limits the cDB team’s ability to offer innovation and transfers more risk to the

owner.
¢ Owners may incur the expense of providing stipends to unsuccessful bidders.

Anticipated Project Schedule:

e  Owner’s A/E RFQ issued — May 2019

¢ Owner’s A/E Contract Executed — August 2019

e ¢DB RFQ — January 2020

e ¢cDB RFP — March 2020

¢ ¢DB Team Contract Executed and Notice to Proceed — June 2020
¢ Certificate of Occupancy Issued — June 2021

Total anticipated project duration: 25 months

Progressive Design-Build (pDB)

Overview

Progressive Design-Build (pDB) is an application of cDB using a stepped or “progressive” method of
project delivery. The PDB project delivery method is based on the use of a “qualifications based” or “best
value” two-step selection process, negating the time and resources an owner expends selecting and
working with a bridging documents designer required in ¢cDB.

The Owner manages one procurement effort to select and contract with a Design-Builder — a team that
includes both designer and contractor that will work closely with the Owner from project inception
through construction completion. Owners may elect to include designer fees or hourly rates, the
contractor’s general overhead rates, a conceptual approach (sketch and/or narrative) and rough order of
magnitude cost estimate as part of two-step interview selection process. However, these require more
information be provided by the Owner and therefore increases the owner’s exposure to risk.

The pDB sequence typically includes two phases with independent contracts:

o The “Phase 1” Preliminary or Preconstruction Services scope may include project programming
or validation, site investigation services such as survey or geotechnical investigation. Phase 1
services include and may also begin with budget level concept design through design

Page 5 of 8



development and contractor preconstruction services to develop a schedule and project cost,
either a lump sum or (more typically) a guaranteed maximum price (GMP).

During Phase 1, design typically progresses to between 40 and 60 percent completion. However,
the Owner can specify any level of completion dependent upon what amount of control and level
of risk exposure is acceptable to the owner.

The “Phase 2” Final Design and Construction Services scope includes final design, construction
and commissioning. If for any reason the parties cannot reach an agreement at the conclusion of
Phase 1, pDB provides an “off ramp” option within the contract allowing the Owner to move
forward with the project through another contract method.

Advantages

Time and internal management cost savings through the single procurement cycle.

Opportunity to work with an integrated team of designers and constructors with proven past
performance working together (typically required in the RFQ).

Selection based on qualifications instead of an open “low bid” price competition significantly
reduces the risk of contracting with a less qualified contractor.

Compared with DBB, owners are also provided the greatest flexibility relative to maintaining
control of design and risk.

pDB brings all three parties - owner, designer and contractor together at the very beginning of the
project enabling owners to more actively participate in the design, scheduling and budgeting
process.

The Owner may elect to establish a “design-build to budget” project cost with confidence in the
transparency of GMP pricing for construction, risk and contingencies. The establishment of a
GMP as part of Phase 1 services ensures the Owner is going to receive the project scope, quality
and budget on schedule as agreed to prior to design completion.

The off ramp option serves as an incentive to the pDB team to provide exceptional service and
provides owners with the flexibility to alter the project delivery method if desired.

Stipends for unsuccessful bidders are rarely provided.

Disadvantages

The pDB team primarily is not selected based on price.

Construction cost is not guaranteed at the time of initial Phase 1 contract signing.

pDB procurement could limit the level of innovation presented during the procurement phase
forcing owners to select primarily on past performance, relevant experience, etc.

Anticipated Project Schedule:

Owner Implementation Plan Development — May 2019

PDB RFQ — July 2019

PDB RFP — September 2019

PDB Team Contract Executed Phase 1 and Notice to Proceed — November 2019
PDB Team Contract Executed Phase 2 and Notice to Proceed — February 2020
Certificate of Occupancy Issued — April 2021

Page 6 of 8



Total anticipated project duration: 23 months
Financial Comparison of Project Delivery Methods

The financial benefits of one project delivery method over the others are associated with the probable
construction cost savings related to each delivery method and the lower interest amounts associated with

the repayment of debt used for project implementation.

Construction Costs

The cost savings associated with various project delivery methods has been a major topic within the
industry and has been widely researched. The most recent benchmark study was conducted by the
Construction Industry Institute (CIT) and the Charles Pankow Foundation' in 2018. The study analyzed
over 212 projects of which 53 were implemented using the traditional DBBuild, 79 using cDB and 80
using CMAR. There was no record of projects implemented using pDB, although unit costs are
anticipated to be 1% less than c¢DB. The study also compares the results of the 2018 analysis with similar
results from a study conducted in 1998. Table 1 summarizes the results of this study.

Table 1 - Performance Comparison for Design Build, Progressive Design Build, CMAR and Design-Bid-Build

Unit Cost 1.6% more' 0.3% less’ 1.3% less®

Cost increase 1.4% less' 3.8% less! 3.8% less?

Source: Revisiting Project Delivery Performance 2018 Study, CII & Charles Pankow Foundation’
Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc.”

The pDB project delivery method is anticipated to be the least costly among the methods considered for
the project, with a potential savings of $260,000 (1.3% decrease) in construction costs versus DBB
project delivery due to anticipated lower unit prices.

Financing Costs

A reduction in financing costs associated with the debt that would be issued for project implementation
can be an additional benefit among delivery methods. Projects that enter into service faster than others are
able to generate revenues sooner that can be used to draw down capital costs and thus reduce financing

costs.

Table 2 compares the probable financing costs savings associated with each of the four proposed delivery
methods considering the following assumptions related to the issuance of debt:

e Loan Amount: $20 million

e Interest Rate: 2.25%

e Loan Term: 30 years

e Payment Grace Period: 1 year

e 25% of debt to be paid from Customer Facility Charges (CFC)’s collected from rental car
transactions

! Revisiting Project Delivery Performance, Keith Molenaar, Phd and Bryan Franz Phd, Construction Industry
Institute and the Charles Pankow Foundation, 2018

Page 7 of 8



Table 2 - Financing Computations

CMAR pDB pDB cDB
vs DBB vs cDB vs CMAR vs CMAR
= 5 0,
F“g'ncmg 0.55%less  0.44% less 0.38% 0.12%less | 017%less  0-06% ,
osts less
$12,000 |
Financing $115,000less  $90,000 less  $78,0001less  $15,000less  $37,000 less le’ss '
i

Cost Savings i
Source: Reynolds, Smith & Hills, Inc. Computation

pDB is anticipated to result in a potential $115,000 cost savings versus DBB in financing cost, and is
anticipated to have the lowest financing costs of the project delivery methods included in the comparison.

Conclusion

Upon agreement with the information provided in this report, I have determined that the benefits of
Progressive Design-Build project delivery satisfies the following needs:

¢ CHO requires a new parking deck to be available for use as soon as possible to meet increased
parking demand. In order to expedite design and construction of the project with appropriate
opportunity for competition, this review has determined the Progressive Design-Build project
delivery methodology is in the public interest.

o Due to the benefits of reduced cost and accelerated timeline of precast parking deck construction,
precast construction is anticipated to be incorporated into the project. This review has determined
that Progressive Design-Build will enable the project to generate nationwide interest amongst the
contracting community, thereby increasing competition and reducing overall cost.

e Progressive Design-Build is anticipate to deliver the parking deck project at reduced cost while
providing the Owner with enhanced control of the project design and budget throughout the
process.

Recommendation

The staff and governing body of the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority have a clear
understanding of the Project’s scope of work.

Based on review of this public interest finding, I have determined that the use competitive sealed bidding
is not practicable or fiscally advantageous, and I find the use of progressive design-build contracting for
the proposed Parking Deck Construction project is in the best interest of the Authority.

Recommended for Approval:

Melinda Crawford date

Executive Director,
Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority

Page 8 of 8



CHO

At R P O R T
TO: Members of the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority
FROM: Melinda C. Crawford, Executive Director
DATE: March 12,2019
SUBJECT: Action Item #6 — Resolution No. 2019-3 “Resolution Making Certain

Declarations and Providing Certain Approvals In Connection With A
Proposed Bond Issue”

RECOMMENDATION: The Board approve Resolution No. 2019-3 “Resolution Making
Certain Declarations and Providing Certain Approvals In Connection With A Proposed Bond
Issue”

BACKGROUND: The Board approved the Airport Capital Improvement Plan which
included approximately $25 million for the expansion and improvement of the Authority’s
public parking facilities. Since parking projects are not eligible for FAA or Virginia
Department of Aviation funding, the Authority will be required to issue bonds to finance
these projects. This resolution will allow for the reimbursement of the costs of any project
expenditures that are incurred prior to the Authority’s issuance or incurrence of bond or other
debt.

PRIOR ACTION: Prior Airport Capital Improvement Plans have included parking
improvement projects and the one being presented to the Board in May

will contain these projects.

FUNDING: Annual Debt Service on all parking improvements will be 100%
Authority funded.

FINANCIAL

IMPACT: The annual debt service associated with the issuance of $25 million

will be funded by the Authority’s annual operating budget and Rental
Car Customer Facility Charges

ATTACHMENTS: 1) Resolution No. 2019-3 “Resolution Making Certain

Declarations and Providing Certain Approvals In Connection
With A Proposed Bond Issue”

PRESENTATION: None



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-3

RESOLUTION MAKING CERTAIN DECLARATIONS AND PROVIDING
CERTAIN APPROVALS IN CONNECTION WITH A PROPOSED BOND ISSUE

WHEREAS, the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority (the
"Authority") intends to (i) undertake certain projects at or in connection with the
Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport, including but not limited to improvements to the
parking facilities (collectively, the "Project"), (ii) make expenditures to pay costs of the
Project prior to the Authority’s issuance or incurrence of bonds or other debt (the
"Bonds"), and (iii) reimburse itself for such original expenditures (the "Expenditures")
from the proceeds of the Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has been advised that Treas. Regs. § 1.150-2
requires the Authority to make certain declarations in the forms set forth below to
preserve the Authority's ability to make the above-described reimbursement.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Charlottesville-Albemarle
Airport Authority that:

1. The Authority intends to finance the Project through the issuance of the Bonds in
the estimated maximum principal amount of 25,000,000 and reasonably expects
to reimburse the Expenditures from the proceeds of the Bonds to the extent
permitted under Treas. Regs. § 1.150-2.

2. Paragraph 1 above represents a declaration of "official intent" under Treas. Regs.
§ 1.150-2.
3. The Authority acknowledges that the Expenditures most likely to be reimbursable

under Treas. Regs. § 1.150-2 are Expenditures which are (i) capital expenditures
(or expenditures that would be capital expenditures with a proper election) under
general federal income tax principles or (ii) costs of issuance of the Bonds.

4, This Resolution shall be in effect from and after its adoption.

ADOPTED this 12 day of March, 2019.

Vote:

Aye: No:

Certified:

By:

Melinda Crawford, Secretary



CHO

Al R P O R T

TO: Members of the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority

FROM: Melinda C. Crawford, Executive Director

DATE: March 12, 2019

SUBJECT: Action Item #7 — Ratification of Transportation Network Company (TNC)

Agreement Fees

RECOMMENDATION: Ratification of Board’s Approval for a $2.00 TNC Pick-Up and
Drop-Off Fee

BACKGROUND: Legislation has been passed in the Commonwealth which authorizes
Airports to enter into agreements with TNCs (Transportation Network Companies such as Uber
and Lyft), and this legislation allows Airports to establish fees for the privilege of the TNCs to
operate at each airport. At the last Board meeting, a revision of the Authority’s Rules and
Regulations was approved which established guidelines in which TNCs can operate at CHO. The
approved revision to the Rules and Regulations allows the Executive Director to negotiate
agreements with the TNCs. Prior to proceeding with any negotiations, I informally requested the
Board’s approval of including a $2.00 “pick-up” fee and a $2.00 “drop-off™ fee that will be
charged to each TNC driver operating at CHO.

This proposed fee system was derived after conversations with numerous other airport managers
and staff meetings/discussions. A survey of fees charged at several other airports was used to
determine this proposed fee system.

During the informal Board approval process noted above, I committed to bringing this matter back
to the Board for ratification.

The negotiation process is proceeding with the TNC agreements, and all final agreements will be
brought to the Board for approval at a future date.

PRIOR ACTION: Informal Board approval sought in a 2/7/19 email.

FUNDING: N/A

FINANCIAL IMPACT: N/A

ATTACHMENTS: None

PRESENTATION: None



March 2019

CHO

Al R P O R T

1. Executive Director’s Update

a. Personnel Update— To be provided.

b. FY2020 - 6 Year Airport Capital Improvement Plan

¢. Construction Update- To be provided

i

1.
iii.
iv.
\'A
vi.
Vii.
Viii.

Parking Improvements Design
Runway/Taxiway Rehab Construction
Air Carrier Ramp Expansion Design
Entry Pavilion Design

Terminal Energy Modification
Terminal Area Master Plan

MALSR Update

Charging Stations Installation

d. Marketing & Air Service Update — to be provided



